
SWAT SC Working Group Meeting 
Thursday, January 25, 2007 

Location:  Trico Electric Cooperative, Meeting Room 

Time:  9:30AM3:45 PM 

Notes:  Tom Field, WAPA 
A copy of the agenda, a list of attendees, and the distributed material is 
attached to the end of these notes. 

1)  Introductions, Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes, and Update on 
Action Items 

Tom Field opened the meeting by stating that there were several things that he wanted to 
cover in this meeting. Tom stated that he had an item on the agenda for combining cases 
and that he wanted to start on the case combination at this meeting to meet the July 
deadline for having a completed case. The agenda was distributed and is attached to the 
end of these minutes. The items on the agenda were each read. 

There were 4 participants at the meeting and 3 participants on the teleconference. The list 
of members on the website was shown and the sign in sheet was passed around. Tom F. 
asked everyone if they would object to placing their contact information on the sign in 
sheet on the website in the meeting minutes. There were no objections. Everyone was 
asked to introduce themselves. The list of participants is attached to the end of these 
minutes. 

The link to the previous meeting minutes on the website was shown next. The previous 
meeting minutes were shown on the screen. Tom asked everyone to review the meeting 
minutes as he slowly scrolled through them. Tom F. asked if anyone saw anything in the 
previous meeting minutes that they wanted changed or if there was anything they wanted 
added. Tom F. pointed out that Don A. was to make a map, but it was not listed as an 
action item in the minutes. Everyone agreed to list this under the map section in this 
meeting as an action item and not amend the previous minutes. There were no changes 
requested. Tom asked everyone if they agreed that the previous meeting minutes should 
be listed as approved. Everyone agreed. As an action item, Tom F. stated that he would 
show the October 2006 minutes on the website as approved.



a)  Action Items 

The action items from the previous meeting were covered next. 

The first action item was for Tom Field to place the September meeting minutes on the 
website as approved. Tom stated this had been done. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to investigate the latest change made by Aspen 
which is supposed to take care of the transformer problems in the PTI to Aspen 
conversion. Tom stated that he had not had time to do this due to priorities on other 
projects. This is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to rerun the DPV2 case and check to verify that 
the charging was not set to zero originally since the screen shot showed the “set charging 
to zero” as checked for the new Aspen transformer option comparison of PTI to Aspen. 
Tom stated that he had not had time to do this since the last meeting. This is still an open 
action item. 

The next action item was for Mike Agudo ask Lane C. of WAPA if he went to the 
October 16, 2006 Western Protective Relay Conference and if he did, he would ask him 
if he would provide a report to the group. Tom stated that Mike had informed him that 
Lane did not attend the conference this year. 

The next action item was for Maria Ramirez to find out who at SRP attended the Western 
Protective Relay Conference and ask them if they would give a report to the group on the 
meeting. Tom stated that Maria was not at the meeting and had not updated him on this. 
This is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to place a link to the Western Protective Relay 
Conference on the SWAT SCWG website. Tom stated this had been done and showed 
the link. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to compile the SWTC reclosing questionnaire 
responses and post them in an encrypted file on the website. Tom F. stated that Tom 
Spence had started a working group on reclosing after the last meeting. Tom F. stated that 
the responses that had been received were on the website, but not everyone sent in a 
response. Tom F. asked Tom S. if this should still be an open action item. Tom S. stated 
that they would still be useful if he could get them. He stated that he had some follow up 
questions on the responses received. He stated that he would like to have the rest of the 
responses sent in. This is still an open action item.



The next action item was for Tom Spence to provide the reclosing working group 
information to Tom F. to put on the website. Tom stated that the last working group 
meeting was on January 24. He stated that he had put the responses that the SWAT 
SCWG sent in into a spreadsheet. He said he also had information from the meeting. He 
stated that they would have another meeting in a couple of weeks. He stated that he 
would like to finish a lot of things that are lined up to be done and then provide the 
information to the SWAT SCWG. He stated that he may be able to do this by the next 
meeting. This is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Kevin Salsbury to contact Alex F. and obtain the date for 
the next ENSCSG meeting. Kevin stated that he had talked to Alex and Alex informed 
him that the next meeting would be delayed due to his workload. He stated that the next 
meeting may be scheduled by the end of March. He stated that Alex would contact Tom 
F. before the next meeting date and provide the information to share with those in the 
SWAT SCWG that would like to attend. As an action item, Tom Field will send the EN 
SCSG information on the next meeting to all of the SWAT SCWG members. 

The next action item was for Kevin Salsbury to send the address of the ENSCSG 
webpage to Tom F. to place on the SWAT SCWG webpage. Kevin stated that the 
webpage had not been setup yet. This is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to put the ENSCSG webpage link on the SWAT 
SCWG webpage. Tom stated this could not be done until the ENSCSG webpage is 
setup. This is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to contact Alex F. and ask him to chair the EN 
SCSG task force. Tom stated that he had contacted Alex and showed an email response 
from Alex dated November 3, 2006. Alex suggested that Tom F. chair the task force in 
his email. Tom stated that this would be discussed further in the ENSCSG agenda item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to talk to TEP about TEP/Unisource being a 
member of the ENSCSG. Tom S. of SWTC did not state whether or not SWTC wanted 
to be a member of the ENSCSG in the previous meeting. Tom F. stated that he had not 
contacted TEP about this yet. Tom F. stated that this would be discussed further during 
the ENSCSG agenda item along with the need for a response from SWTC. This is still 
an open action item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to arrange a teleconference with SCE, SDGE, 
CFE, IID, and SWAT for the Southern California short circuit case. Tom stated this had 
been done. Tom stated that he sent out an email before the teleconference to the 
participants with background information on the need for building the case. This email 
was shown. Tom stated that this email went through the history of what had been done to 
try and develop a short circuit case with Southern California since the SWAT SCWG 
began which included the desire to obtain a reciprocity agreement with them for sharing 
of the case between the two groups similar to the verbal agreement with the CCPG Short 
Circuit Database Working Group.



Tom stated that the first teleconference was held on November 8 with SDG&E, SCE, 
CFE, IID, SPPC, and WAPA on November 8, 2006.  Tom showed an email that was sent 
after the teleconference with a summary of what was said. Robert S. stated that Gary 
Chinn was leaving SCE and that he would contact his supervisor to find out who would 
be replacing him. He also pointed out that the last n in Chinn was not in the email. 

Tom stated that CFE, SDG&E, and SCE each agreed to share their short circuit data with 
each other in a combined case. Tom stated that CFE and SDG&E agreed to provide data 
to the 69 kV level, but SCE was not sure whether they would or if they would 
equivalence below 220 kV. Tom stated that CFE uses PSS/E, SDG&E uses Aspen, and 
SCE uses Cape. 

Tom stated that they went through the benefits of having a combined case. He stated that 
one of the benefits was getting the correct DC offset for breakers when they are near 
equivalents. Tom stated that Ron had previously stated this from his findings in the Four 
Corners area. Tom asked Ron O. if this was a correct statement and Ron stated that it 
was. Tom stated that in this teleconference, he suggested that Ron O. participate in the 
next teleconference. 

Tom stated that he went through the mechanics of combining the cases. He pointed out 
that the method that the SWAT SCWG was undertaking would allow the cases to be 
combined for future upgrades with no problems. A question was asked about what CCPG 
was doing. Tom stated that he did not know and had hoped that having a liaison with 
CCPG would provide this information. He stated that all he knew was that members of 
the CCPG that participated in earlier teleconferences were putting the case together and 
the email update by Bill M. implied that the case was not complete yet. 

Tom stated that in the teleconference they agreed that the protection people from SCE 
and SDG&E should be involved in the next teleconference. Tom stated that the main 
issue was allocation of resources for putting the case together. He stated that they wanted 
to be able to show the benefits of doing this to justify the resources. Tom stated that a 
second teleconference was requested to show the benefits to SCE and SDG&E. A second 
teleconference was arranged for November 14 and Tom showed the email for this 
coordination. Tom stated that most people did not participate in the teleconference on 
November 14 due to a WECC meeting. 

Tom stated Alex Fratkin representing SPPC/NPC was also in the teleconference because 
the ENSCSG also desired to have a combined case from Southern California for their 
work and that this effort would be a good start in developing that case. Tom stated that 
because of the low participation, he tried to arrange a third teleconference, but due to 
holidays and workload, this teleconference did not happen.



Tom stated that the main problem appears to be resources. Ron O. stated that this is 
probably because the right people were not on the teleconference. Tom stated that this is 
similar to the situation in the beginning with SRP where Ron and Tom both met with the 
manager and engineers in the protection department and the planning department. Tom 
stated that they both saw the benefits of a combined case, but felt another group should 
supply the resources. Tom stated that it appears that they are now both participating 
because he thought that Maria was in the planning department and David was in the 
protection department. 

Tom stated that one of the things he tried to point out was that the planning groups spent 
a year developing the PDV2 short circuit case and several months developing the 
centennial short circuit case. Tom stated that Alex had pointed out in the second 
teleconference that these cases are no longer useful. Tom stated that if they had a 
coordinated case, they would not have had to spend all that time, but the problem is 
convincing the planning group that this saves them time. Everyone agreed that this was a 
benefit. 

Tom stated that the SWAT SCWG has a mix of planning and protection people in it. Tom 
stated that some companies use a different program for planning than protection. Ron 
stated that SCE uses CAPE for protection and PSS/E for planning short circuit studies. 

Tom stated that with the holidays over, another meeting should be scheduled so the 
momentum is not lost. Robert S. stated that Gary Chinn would be leaving SCE. As an 
action item, Robert Sanders will contact his supervisor to see who the new contact at SCE 
in planning for short circuit work will be. Robert stated that the people at IID that 
participated had been very busy over the past few months. As an action item, Robert S. 
stated that he would contact Tom F. after the meeting with a time frame for the next 
teleconference. As an action item, Robert S. stated that he would talk to SCE about their 
planning people versus their protection people being involved in the effort.  As an action 
item, Ron O. stated that he would participate in the next teleconference to provide 
justification for developing the case. 

Tom F. stated that since the last meeting, IID protection people requested the WAPA 
short case equivalents. Tom stated that he had responded to the request that their case was 
available to IID on the website and provided the IID contacts for the case. Tom stated 
that he was wondering whether or not IID had made similar requests of SCE and 
SDG&E. Robert S. stated that he was unaware of the request. As an action item, Tom F. 
stated that he would send the email on the equivalents data request from IID to Robert S. 
after the meeting. Tom stated that this may be helpful in determining who from those 
companies should participate in the next teleconference. As an action item, Robert S. 
stated that he would see if the SCE, SDG&E, and CFE equivalents were also requested, 
and, if they were, find out who the people were that were contacted and have them 
involved in the next teleconference.



The next action item was for the entire group to send in the areas and zones they want to 
use for their data. Tom stated that he still only had one utility with all of their dedicated 
zones. This is still an open action item and will be discussed more in the agenda item on 
areas and zones. 

The next action item was for the entire group to send in the zones they want to use for 
their mutual zone, their equivalent zone, and their seams zone. This is still an open action 
item and will be discussed more in the agenda item on areas and zones. 

The next action item was for Maria Ramirez to contact Steve C. and ask him to send in 
the PNM case for error checking. Tom F. stated that he had received an email from Steve 
which indicated that he would not be able to provide the case until he finished combining 
the TNMP system with the PNM system. The email was shown which stated the case is 
being worked on. Tom asked David G. if this would be a problem since PNM is a system 
adjacent to his. David stated that he could not combine his case without having the PNM 
case. It was stated in the meeting that TNMP had been purchased by PNM. It was stated 
that PNM may be struggling to get data because their headquarters is in Houston. Tom F. 
asked if anyone knew when TNMP had been acquired by PNM so the group would have 
a feel for how long the delay might be. Don A. looked up the information on the internet 
and found that it had been acquired in June 2005. Tom pointed out that Steve was not in 
the meeting and the email appeared to indicate that he may not be able to make it to other 
meetings if the schedule was not changed to a Tuesday or Wednesday. David G. 
requested that the group move the meeting to Tuesday or Wednesday to get Steve 
involved in the process again. Tom stated that this suggestion was in the presentation in 
the section on the next meeting and would be discussed in more detail during the agenda 
item on the next meeting. 

The next action item was for the entire group to send their information to Tom F. to 
change the buses spreadsheet if they are an owner of a seams bus and want different 
information than in the WECC case.  Tom stated that he had included the SRP 
information Maria R. sent on October 25 in the buses spreadsheet. Tom stated that he had 
not received any other member information. Tom stated this was still an open action item 
and would be discussed in more detail during the agenda item on areas and zones. 

The next action item was for the entire group to review their seams buses that they are the 
owners of in the WECC case, return any split WECC buses to Tom F., and indicate 
which lines are connected to them and the bus numbers they want to use for them. Tom 
stated that he had not received any information from any of the members yet. Tom stated 
this is still an open action item.



The next action item was for the entire group to start putting area and zone information in 
their cases in preparation for the combining of the cases. Tom stated that several 
members have put areas and zones in their cases. Tom stated that SRP recently asked for 
some clarification on equivalents and seams buses while working on their case. He 
showed an email with the clarification sent to SRP. Tom stated that if SRP wanted 
clarification, others may also have similar questions. Tom summarized the clarification in 
the email and asked if anyone was unclear on equivalents and seams buses. Everyone 
stated that it was clear. Tom stated that SRP was not able to attend, but sent an email 
which indicated they would soon be finished with the area and zone information in their 
case. Tom stated that this was still an open action item and would be discussed in more 
detail during the agenda item on areas and zones. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to change the buses spreadsheet to include any 
split bus information that members send in. Tom stated that he had not received any 
information yet, so this is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for the entire group to identify their seams buses, send a revised 
list from the spreadsheet with just seams buses, and indicate the names and numbers they 
want changed in the spreadsheet. Tom stated that SRP was the only member to send 
information in yet. Tom stated this is still an open action item and would be discussed in 
more detail during the agenda item on areas and zones. 

The next action item was for the entire group to change the names and numbers of their 
seams buses to match the spreadsheet names and numbers for the owners of the seams 
buses. Tom stated that everyone needs to send in their seams bus information before 
others can change their cases for these. Tom stated this is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to change the buses spreadsheet to include any 
changes that the members send in.  Tom stated that he had updated the sheet with the 
information that Maria sent, but others have not sent their information in yet. Tom stated 
the updated spreadsheet is on the website. Tom stated this is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for the entire group to add unique bus numbers to their buses 
that have a bus number of 0 and send in their case for the second round of error checking 
to be able to determine the number of buses with a difference of 100 A or more. Tom 
stated that most of the cases have unique bus numbers now. Tom stated that the SWRTA 
case doesn’t. As an action item, Don Adams stated that he would send in the SWRTA 
case with unique bus numbers. As an action item, Tom Field stated that he would 
manually change the TEP case with over 400 buses having a number of 0 to unique bus 
numbers.  Tom stated this is still an open action item.



The next action item was for Tom Field to put a branches sheet for all of the buses in the 
buses spreadsheet. Tom F. stated this had been done and it is on the website. Tom 
showed the cases section of the website and pointed to the “Buses” link next to “Area and 
Zone”. Tom stated that this is where the updated spreadsheet can be downloaded from. 
Tom stated that he exported the case to EPC format in PSLF and then wrote a FORTRAN 
program to extract the information. Tom stated that there are now 2 new tabs in the buses 
spreadsheet. Tom stated the first new tab is for the lines that came from the SECDD 
section of the EPC file. Tom showed this new tab labeled “alllines”. Tom showed this 
new tab labeled “alltransformers”. Tom stated that the transformer section of the EPC 
file contains both 2 winding and 3 winding transformers which are not split out like the 
ASPEN DXT file format. Tom stated that he extracted all of the primary and secondary 
winding names, but did not extract the tertiary bus information. Tom stated that he did 
not do this because the tertiary should not be needed to determine who the owner of a 
seams bus is. Tom stated that when a branch or a transformer is connected between two 
buses, the owners of the buses can be found from the bus information in the “allbuses” 
tab. Tom stated that there are two possibilities for the seams bus when there are different 
owners on each side of an element. Tom stated that the lines and transformers sheets will 
be used to find who the owner is. Tom stated that the seams bus is the bus on the side of 
the element with a different owner than that of the element. Tom stated that this is where 
the ownership changes, so it determines the seams bus. Tom stated that this is probably 
the largest part of the work left for the group and that everyone should be working on 
identifying their seams buses so the group can meet their deadline of July, 2007 for 
completing the case. As an action item, Tom Field will put together a procedure with 
screen shots to show how to sort an excel spreadsheet by owner to help the members 
determine where their seams buses are. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to generate a list of the types of errors to be fixed 
and send to everyone before they send their fixed cases back. Tom stated that this was a 
sequential task that was dependent on knowing all the errors. Tom stated that he would 
do this after Electrocon has finished making revisions to Cape since the messages have 
changed some in the last revision checked. 

The next action item was for the entire group to make a list of the errors not in their data 
and identify whose data the error is in. Tom stated that this is a sequential task that was 
dependent on other action items being accomplished first. Tom stated that the list of 
problems needed to be finished before this task could be accomplished. Tom stated that 
since most of the errors are in sections outside of the owner’s data which would be 
replaced with the correct data from other members sections, he was not sure that this was 
something that needed to be done. Tom stated that he would like to discuss removal of 
this action item when Maria returns since she was the one that initiated this action item. 
This is still an open action item.



The next action item was for David Gutierrez to look at the COX transformers and 
remove one of them if it is not there. David stated that the case represents real life. David 
stated that one of the transformers was normally open. As an action item, Ron Onate 
stated that he would look at the message and report to Electrocon that Cape should not be 
generating this warning message if one of the transformers is offline. 

The next action item was for SRP to fix the problems in the SRP case identified and send 
the fixed case back to Tom F. for a second round of error checking. Tom stated that he 
had not received a revised case from SRP yet. This is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate to fix the problems identified in the APS case 
and send the fixed case back to Tom F. for a second round of error checking. Ron stated 
that he had not had time to do this yet due to the error checking work. This is still an open 
action item. 

The next action item was for WAPA to fix the problems in the WAPA case identified and 
send the fixed case back to Tom F. for a second round of error checking. Tom stated that 
he had not had time to do this yet due to the error checking work. This is still an open 
action item. 

Tom stated that the rest of the action items on problems in the cases would be discussed 
in more detail during the “Check of Members Cases” agenda item, but he would go to 
through a brief update right now. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate to fix the bus names and kVs that are duplicates 
in the APS case. Ron stated that this had been done. This case has not been submitted yet 
as shown in the most recent APS error checking file APSPRER2C.REP. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate to look further into why 1 of the switches was 
not added in the APS log file and contact Electrocon if the report is incorrect. Ron stated 
that this had been done. Ron stated the problem was that two switches were in parallel 
and Cape removes one of them. Ron stated the removal of a parallel switch is not a 
problem. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to send the correct generator data to TEP. Tom 
stated that it turned out to be an equivalent not on the TEP system, but in another 
member’s area. Tom stated that since it was not a real generator, Ron and he decided this 
would not be done. Tom stated that they put in some parameters to get around the error. 
As an action item, Tom Field will tell TEP what was done during the error checking to 
get around this problem in the TEP case. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate to develop a list of what characters are not 
accepted in Cape. Ron stated that this had been done.



The next action item was for Tom Field to send the list of characters not accepted in 
CAPE to the group. Tom stated this had been done and showed the email with the list of 
characters that are accepted in CAPE. Ron O. stated that the short bus names are hard to 
identify sometimes. Tom stated that more information can be put in about a bus in the 
location field of Aspen. Tom stated that the location in Aspen is the substation field in 
Cape. 

The meeting was adjourned at this point for lunch from 12:00 pm to 12:30 pm. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to check the IID case and put it 
on the website. Tom stated this had been done. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to have a teleconference with 
Aspen and Electrocon to try and get them to form an agreement to share information 
needed for data conversion between the two programs. Tom stated that while the 
teleconference was being coordinated, Electrocon proposed using PSS/E as an 
intermediate format so Electrocon and Aspen would only need to update one set of 
conversion routines in the future. The email sent by Electrocon was shown. Tom stated 
that the Aspen response was supportive, but indicated that there are some elements in 
Aspen and CAPE which are not supported by PSS/E which could cause some difficulties. 

Tom stated that during the teleconference on November 15, both Electrocon and Aspen 
agreed to update their PSS/E programs in the future as an intermediate conversion. Tom 
stated that Electrocon and Aspen pointed out that some elements such as MOVs, zigzag 
transformers, and spark gaps would have to be handled with comment cards so PSS/E 
does not have a problem with the new file format. Tom stated that they both said that 
their PSS/E conversion routines would have to be modified to read and write the special 
data. Tom said that they agreed to coordinate their work. 

Tom stated that Electrocon agreed to continue fixing the problems that the SWAT SCWG 
was finding with the existing conversion routines in CAPE so the working group could 
finish their case. An email after the teleconference was shown in which Electrocon stated 
that they discussed how the PSS/E conversions could be made to include the elements not 
supported by PSS/E. The zigzag transformers pointed out by Aspen were not in the list, 
but the list may need to contain other elements as well. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to rerun the cases after 
Electrocon fixes the DD transformer conversion problem. Tom stated this had been done 
and that the problem had been fixed.



The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to look into the “secondary 
voltage difference more than 20” problem in the NPC case and determine what the 
message means and what the problem is. Tom stated that the problem did not appear in 
the 3 rd modification of the NPC case when the revised CAPE program was used, so they 
could not look further into this problem. Kevin S. stated that sometimes another entities 
voltage for the system may be different than that used in their transformers and that this 
may be the problem. Kevin stated that as an example, one system may use 500 kV, but 
NPC uses 525 kV for their transformers. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate to look at the 19 transformers with duplicate ckt, 
19 neutral buses added, and 19 bus ties added in the SRP case to determine if they were 
the same. Ron stated that this was just a coincidence and that some of the buses were 
different for the different types of messages. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to look into the cause of the 
“mutual couplings ignored because bus not found” warning message in the TEP case. 
Tom stated this had been done and the problem was found to be that a branch mutually 
coupled was out of service. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to look into the cause of the “end 
buses were not found on bus ties” warning message in the TEP case. Tom stated that this 
had been done and the problem was found to be due to CAPE removing switches when 
more than one is attached to a bus. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to look at what changed during 
the conversion process for the APS case to give the differences between the pre and post 
cases. Tom stated that the comparison had been run and some problems were looked into, 
but all the problems looked at were related to the multiple switches. Tom stated that there 
was no improvement in the pre and post comparison. Tom stated that this would be done 
again after the fix for the multiple switches was received from Electrocon. Tom stated 
this is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to rerun the SRP faults after the 
meeting and look at the differences if they are the same to find out why there were 
differences between Aspen and Cape. Tom stated that the comparison had been run and 
there was no improvement in the pre and post comparisons to Cape. Tom stated that this 
would be done again after the fix for the multiple switches was received from Electrocon. 
Tom stated this is still an open action item. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to look at the differences in the 
Cape and post results for the WAPA case to find out what the differences are due to. Tom 
stated that the comparison had been run and this problem had been eliminated.



The next action item was for Ron Onate and Tom Field to perform a second round of 
error checking on the TEP case and generate the comparison spreadsheet. Tom stated this 
had been done, but has to be redone with bus numbers because there were too many 
buses with a bus number of 0 for a full comparison. Tom stated this is still an open action 
item to be completed when the buses are renumbered. 

The next action item was for Ron Onate to discuss a plan for the equivalents checking 
work with Steve after the meeting. Ron stated this had not been done. Tom stated that 
since Steve has a heavy workload, something needs to be done so this action can move 
along. Tom stated this would be discussed in more detail during the “Equivalents” agenda 
item. 

The next action item was for Tom Field to send out the agenda for the next meeting with 
the directions and information provided by Tom S. Tom F. stated this had been done. 

Tom F. asked if there were any additional action items that were not in the draft of the 
meeting minutes. There were no responses. 

This concluded the update of all action items in the list from the October meeting 
minutes. Tom stated that there were some other things that had occurred since the 
previous meeting and that he would give an update on these items. 

b)  New Items 

Tom stated there was an advanced Aspen training class that would be held in San 
Francisco from March 2122. The email announcement for this class was shown. Tom 
stated that many of the topics on the agenda were items that the group would be working 
with. Tom stated that for in depth Modeling of 3 winding transformers in the class, the 
test connections internal to Aspen have been, and a few remain, as conversion issues to 
Electrocon. 

Tom stated that for in depth Mutual coupling in the class, all members have agreed to 
work on mutual coupling in the second case we develop, but the group will have to deal 
with mutual coupling in the current cases for the first combination. Tom stated that for in 
depth Network Equivalence in the class, the group is currently waiting to start work on 
investigating the network equivalents and error to the full network representation in both 
programs. Tom stated that for in depth Network Anomalies checking, the group has been 
depending on Cape for its error reporting which is superior to the standard messages 
reported in Aspen. He stated there may be other things that the group hasn’t looked at 
discussed in the class. He stated that the group has been finding the problems by placing 
faults at locations with differences and working back to where the difference disappears 
to find the branches that cause problems resulting in requests to fix the problems found in 
the programs. Tom stated that perhaps other ways of checking for problems will be 
discussed. Tom stated that even problems in the data being checked with the CAPE 
software may have other methods of being found in Aspen that would be taught at the 
class. Tom stated that for the in depth Filemerge command in the class, the group should



start the work on this during this meeting. He stated that all of the members will have to 
merge their cases. He stated that Cape has offered to sell the members a stand alone 
program to do exactly what is needed for the combination using the areas, zones, and 
seams buses. He stated that Aspen has the capability, but the group has not investigated it 
yet. Tom stated that for the advanced applications of the Case Comparison program, this 
is something that would be helpful to all members later when updates are made to find 
the changes. Tom stated that for Power Script programming, he wrote a program a couple 
of weeks ago with this language in Aspen for generating sliding fault data. He told them 
that this would be useful to everyone. Tom stated that he could send the program to the 
group or put it on the website along with a FORTRAN program he wrote for extracting 
the data. 

Tom asked if anyone was planning to go to the Advanced Aspen course. He stated that 
his workload may not permit him to go and most of the other members stated that they 
would not be able to attend. Kevin S. stated that he would be going. Tom asked Kevin if 
he would be willing to provide the materials from the class to the group. Kevin stated that 
he would. As an action item, Kevin S. will provide the documentation and programs from 
the Advanced Aspen class to the SWAT SCWG. 

Tom stated that there was an IEEE PSRC meeting held in Phoenix from January 8 th 
through January 11 th . Tom stated that Mike Agudo attended the meeting and would give a 
presentation on the working group meetings he attended at the next SWAT SCWG 
meeting. Tom stated that there are several working group meetings held in parallel during 
this meeting, so it would be helpful if each member that attended reported on the 
meetings that they participated in so everyone would benefit from a combined 
cooperative SWAT effort for information sharing on IEEE protection work. As an action 
item, everyone will check with their company to determine if anyone attended the 
January 2007 IEEE PSRC meeting and, if so, ask them to give a brief report to the group. 

Tom stated that the next SWAT meeting will be held on January 30 in Phoenix. As an 
action item, Tom stated that he would not be able to attend due to his workload, but 
would provide a report to Ron Moulton to give to SWAT. As an action item, Tom stated 
that he would provide the update given to SWAT to the SWAT SCWG at the next 
meeting. 

Tom stated that there was an inquiry about membership in the SWAT SCWG by 
Navigant Consulting in California. He stated that any member of SWAT that was a 
WECC member could request membership in the group. He stated that after SWAT gives 
approval for membership, the group would have to approve the membership. He showed 
the email sent to Navigant with this information. He stated that Navigant responded with 
a request for the procedure to become a member of SWAT. He stated that his response 
was that Rob Kondziolka should be contacted and that he copied Rob on the email. Tom 
stated that this was an interesting request because their office was in San Diego. 

Tom stated that there was another inquiry by Alberta about the status of the work. He 
stated that his response was that he would provide the information when the work was 
complete and showed the email.



Tom asked if anyone had any other old or new items to discuss before going on to the 
next agenda item. There were no other items brought up for discussion. 

2)  PTI to Aspen Conversions 

The meeting continued with the next agenda item on PTI to Aspen Conversions. Tom 
stated that he had not had time to perform any additional work on the PTI to Aspen 
conversions since the previous meeting. Tom stated that he may do some work on this 
with NPC before the next meeting. 

This concluded the PTI to Aspen conversion agenda item. 

3)  Check of Members Cases 

The Check of Members Cases agenda item was covered next. Tom stated that the IID 
case had been checked, the 3 rd round of error checking had been performed on the NPC 
case, the 2 nd round of error checking had been performed on the EPE and TEP cases, and 
the SRP, APS and WAPA cases were checked again after changes to CAPE. 

Tom stated that he and Ron met for 3 full days to perform the error checking. He stated 
that these days were November 2, November 15, and January 17. He stated that during 
the November 2 meeting, the IID, TEP, NPC, WAPA, APS, and SRP cases were rerun 
and the files were generated. He stated that the action items related to these cases were 
worked on. He stated that the previous problems in the NPC case were worked on. He 
stated that during the November 15 meeting, a teleconference was held with Aspen and 
Electrocon for future updates to the conversion routines. He stated that the previous 
problems found in the TEP case and the previous problem action items were investigated. 
He stated that new problems were found during this work. Tom stated that Ron and he 
decided that due to the problems found, they would wait for further program 
modifications before rerunning all the files. 

Tom stated that the DD transformer problem had been resolved and showed the Aspen 
screen shots before and after conversion which verified this. 

Tom stated that for the “Duplicate ckt” message for lines and transformers, they found 
that the “wdg” numbers are actually the bus numbers even if it is a line. He stated that 
with this information, the problems can be looked at to see if the circuit number should 
be changed by the members. 

Tom stated that for the missing switch in the APS log file, they found that there were two 
switches in parallel. He stated that Cape does not allow 2 switches to be in parallel and 
removes one of them. An email from Electrocon in response to this problem was shown.



Tom stated that the “Mutual couplings ignored because bus not found” warning message 
in the TEP case was due to one of the lines being coupled having an offline status which 
caused the message to be generated. 

Tom stated that the “19 transformers with duplicate ckt”, “19 neutral buses added”, and 
“19 bus ties added” messages in the SRP case were found to be at different buses. He 
stated that it was just a coincidence that there were 19 for each of these. 

Tom stated that the “secondary voltage difference more than 20” problem in the NPC 
case could not be reproduced in the revised NPC case using the current revision of 
CAPE. 

Tom stated that the “end buses were not found on bus ties” warning messages in the TEP 
case were due to more than 1 switch connected to one of the buses. He stated that Cape 
removes all but one of the switches when multiple switches are connected to a bus. He 
stated that this is what caused this message. He stated that all of the mismatches looked at 
in the APS case involved removal of switches or equipment taken offline with switches. 
He stated that the version of Cape used on January 17 did not put this message in the 
output, but the problem was still not resolved. As an action item, Ron Onate will contact 
Electrocon and request that they add a message back to the output file when this problem 
is in the case. Tom stated that this problem is still not resolved, but should eliminate most 
of the mismatches in the APS case when it is fixed. 

Tom stated that on November 15, some new problems were found. Tom stated that 
because of these new problems, and the problem with the switches, Ron and he decided 
that they should not continue until Electrocon made some changes to the program. Tom 
showed an email that was sent to Electrocon on the new problems found. 

Tom stated that the first new problem found was a YYD transformer in the TEP case. 
The drawing of this transformer in the Aspen case before conversion was shown first 
which has the delta as the high voltage side and two Y connections as the low voltage 
sides. The error message in Aspen after the case is converted back from Cape was shown 
which indicated an illegal transformer connection. The transformer data in Aspen before 
conversion was shown which puts the delta as the tertiary. Tom stated that this is the only 
configuration which Aspen supports for this type of transformer. The transformer data in 
Aspen after conversion was shown. Tom stated that Cape moves the high voltage 
winding to the primary which is not supported by Aspen. Tom pointed out that the use 
box was not checked for the primary winding because Aspen does not recognize this type 
of connection. Tom showed an email response after the problem was reported dated 
December 4 from Electrocon in which they stated they were revising the program to 
correct this problem and then an email from Electrocon on January 21 which stated that 
the problem had been corrected. Tom stated that this problem had not been corrected in 
the version of Cape used on January 17. Tom stated that their December 4 email 
indicated that Electrocon was also looking for other places that could have conversion 
errors that the SWAT SCWG had not identified yet.



Tom stated that the second new problem found was related to the TEP “end buses not 
found” problem. Tom stated that some of the APS case mismatches above 100 A were 
looked at on November 15. Tom stated that all of the mismatches investigated resulted in 
finding buses where switches had been removed. Tom stated that the problem was that 
Cape automatically removed all but one switch when more than one switch is connected 
to a bus. Tom showed one example of the Aspen case before conversion to Cape which 
had two switches connected to a bus and the Aspen case after conversion back from Cape 
which had only one switch connected to the bus. Tom stated that these were not parallel 
switches, so this is a significant problem in Cape for the APS case which uses switches to 
sectionalize buses in stations for breaker duty evaluations. Tom showed an email dated 
January 21 from Electrocon in which they stated that they could not find the problem. 
Tom stated that apparently, they removed the error message related to the TEP problem 
and did not correct the cause of the message which was removal of switches when they 
were not in parallel. As an action item, Ron Onate and Tom Field will call Electrocon if 
their latest version does not fix the problem, send Electrocon the files that should clearly 
show this problem, and make sure they can see the problem so they can fix it. 

Tom showed an email response from Electrocon received after the November 15 meeting 
in which they stated that they would have a corrected version in ten days. Another email 
from January 21 was shown in which Electrocon stated that they had a new release with 
solutions to problems which was their December 8 release. 

Tom stated that Ron and he met on January 17 after Ron installed the newest version of 
Cape that he had received from Electrocon on CD after the November 15 meeting. Tom 
stated that they reran the TEP, NPC, IID, WAPA, SRP, and APS cases. Tom stated that 
comparisons of the outputs were made in spreadsheets for each of the cases and that the 
latest files were all on the website. Tom stated that the YYD transformer and the multiple 
switch problems were still not resolved in the version used on January 17. 

Tom stated that the version of Cape used on January 17 had some significant 
improvements in the singularity checking and that the zero sequence data is now correct 
in the report. Tom stated that a new error message appeared in the NPC output that was 
not in the version used on November 15. The error message was that Cape was “unable to 
treat connected isolated groups at buses 324 CO and 325 CO”. Tom stated that after this, 
there was a suggestion in the message to look for ungrounded neutral nodes and that this 
message appeared after a singularity list. Kevin S. looked at the buses 324 and 325 in the 
NPC case and stated that he did not see any problems at these two buses. Kevin stated 
that the names of the buses were not “CO”. Ron O. stated that “CO” is a type of bus in 
Cape and not a name. As an action item, Ron Onate and Tom Field will look at the two 
buses to try and find what is causing this new error message.



Tom stated that the EPE case checked with the Cape software on November 15 stated 
that there were 191 transformers in the log file, but the same case checked with the 
revised Cape software on January 17 that there were only 187 transformers. Tom stated 
that there was a similar observation for the TEP case which reported 451 transformers on 
November 15 and 450 transformers on January 17. As an action item, Tom Field and Ron 
Onate will look into the problem and determine whether the number of transformers 
reported before was incorrect, if the new number of transformers reported is incorrect, or 
if Cape is now removing transformers. 

Tom stated that the comparison spreadsheets did not show any differences in the IID case 
over 2 A on any of the comparisons. He stated that the TEP case had too many buses 
without a number, so only the post to Cape comparisons were useful. He stated that the 
SRP and APS cases still have problems, but the investigation into the WAPA case 
comparisons was resolved in the version of Cape used on January 17. Tom stated that he 
would go through the case comparisons in more detail. 

Tom stated that for the EPE pre to post comparison, there were only 7 buses with a 
difference of 100 A or more. He stated that the first two buses were shown as different, 
but they were actually the same bus. He stated that the bus name was blank for one 
because the number was changed by Cape for some reason. He pointed out that Cape did 
rename this bus because there was a space in the name which is replaced by an 
underscore in Cape, but this should not have been a reason for Cape to renumber the bus. 
As an action item, Ron Onate and Tom Field will investigate why the bus number was 
changed for the Westmesa T3 bus in the EPE case. Tom stated that the three phase 
difference was zero on 6 of the 7 buses with a difference of more than 100 A. He stated 
that this indicated that Cape was changing something related to the zero sequence. As an 
action item, Ron Onate and Tom Field will investigate why there is a single line to 
ground fault difference on these 6 buses and not a three phase fault difference. 

Tom stated that for the EPE case, there were 56 buses with a difference of 100 A or more 
between the pre and Cape cases and 50 buses with 100 A or more difference between the 
Cape and post cases. Tom stated that this indicates a solution algorithm difference 
between Cape and Aspen. As an action item, Ron Onate and Tom Field will investigate 
the cause of the 43 buses with 100 A or more difference in just the Pre to Cape and the 
Cape to Post comparisons. 

Tom stated that for the NPC pre to post comparison, there were 18 buses with 100 A or 
more difference. He pointed out that many of the differences have bus number 
differences which indicates Cape has either renumbered a bus or removed it. He stated 
that many were bus removals because the names did not include characters that were not 
accepted by Cape. He stated that most of the buses shown appeared to be generators. 
Kevin S. stated that these buses were generator buses. As an action item, Ron Onate and 
Tom Field will investigate the generator bus differences over 100 A before and after 
conversion to find the cause of the difference. Tom stated that he suspects that Cape is 
changing something in the GSUs based on previous transformer problems found in the 
conversion software.



Tom stated that for the NPC case, there were 79 buses with a difference of 100 A or more 
between the pre and Cape cases and 36 buses with 100 A or more difference between the 
Cape and post cases. He stated that the 36 differences may be explained or resolved when 
the cause or solution to the problem was foundwith the 43 EPE buses to be investigated 
in the pre to cape and cape to post comparisons. He stated that most of the 79 differences 
may be explained or resolved when this is done as well as the cause or solution to the 18 
buses with a difference between the pre and post cases in the NPC is investigated. 

Tom stated that for the TEP case, there were 12 buses with a 100 A or more difference. 
He pointed out that some were due to the SLG fault only which was being investigated in 
the EPE case. He stated that after the buses are numbered, a better investigation of the 
differences and solutions to the problems in the TEP case can be performed. 

Tom stated that the previous problems in the APS, SRP, and WAPA comparisons were 
investigated. He stated that the pre to post comparisons in the WAPA case were reduced 
from 22 to16, the pre to Cape comparisons were increased from 25 to 38, and the Cape to 
post comparisons were reduced from 133 to 22 buses with 100 A or more difference. He 
stated that the latest version of Cape used appears to have removed the previous problem 
which was a high difference between just the Cape to post solutions. He pointed out that 
while this problem was resolved, there was an increase in the number of pre to Cape 
comparisons with 100 A or more. 

Tom stated that the SRP pre to post comparisons were reduced from 12 to 11 buses with 
100 A or more difference. He stated that the pre to Cape comparisons increased from 134 
to 159 buses with 100 A or more difference similar to the increase in pre to Cape bus 
differences in the WAPA case. He stated that the Cape to post comparisons increased 
from 123 to 149 buses. Tom stated that the previous problem investigated was the Cape 
to post and Cape to pre comparisons being high, but the pre to post comparisons being 
low. Tom stated that this problem was not resolved with the latest version of Cape and 
the use of small switch reactances, but, rather, became worse. As an action item, Ron 
Onate and Tom Field will look at this problem again after the next revision of Cape. Tom 
stated that this may be explained or resolved when the 43 buses in the EPE case with 
differences in the pre to Cape and Cape to post comparisons are explained or fixed. 

Tom stated that the APS pre to post comparisons remained at 313 buses, the pre to Cape 
comparisons remained at 317 buses, and the Cape to post comparisons remained at 57 
buses. He stated that the previous problem investigated was the pre to post and Cape to 
pre comparison being high, but the investigation resulted in no change using the latest 
version of Cape and small switch reactances. Tom stated that this indicated a problem in 
the initial Aspen to Cape conversion because the Cape to Post comparison was much 
lower. Tom stated that the other problems being investigated should eliminate many of 
the problems. He stated that most will probably be due to the elimination of switches 
during the initial conversion from Aspen to Cape. As an action item, Ron Onate and Tom 
Field will investigate these differences after the switch removal problem in the 
conversion software reported to Electrocon has been fixed.



Tom stated that Ron O. sent an email to Electrocon on January 23 requesting a CD with 
the latest version of Cape to see if they have fixed the switch problem yet. He stated that 
they would not rerun the cases until the switch removal problem was resolved. He stated 
that after this problem is fixed, the cases will be rerun, new comparisons will be made, 
and the cause of the remaining problems will be investigated. 

This concluded the Check of Members Cases agenda item. 

4)  WestConnect Map Work Proposal 

The WestConnect Map Proposal agenda item was covered next. Tom stated that the last 
WestConnect meeting was held on January 18 in Las Vegas and the next WestConnect 
meeting will be held on February 15 in Phoenix. He stated that he had not heard anything 
from WestConnect since the last SWAT SCWG meeting. As an action item, Don Adams 
stated that he would make the map for the SWRTA case and send it to Tom F. to place on 
the website. 

This concluded the WestConnect Map Work Proposal agenda item. 

5)  Areas and Zones in Cases 

The Areas and Zones in Cases agenda item was covered next. Tom stated that he had 
only one response on the mutual, equivalent, and seams zones. He stated that he had one 
response on the seams buses and one response on bus numbers different from WECC 
which was from SRP. He said that he did not have any response yet on the split bus 
information and that most of these will probably be in the APS case. Tom stated that 
everyone needs to send their information on their seams before others can finish the 
preparation of their cases for the combining. 

The areas and zones data in the spreadsheet was shown. As an action item, Don Adams 
stated that he would send Tom F. the zones that SWRTA will use for the areas and zones 
spreadsheet. Tom stated that at a minimum, everyone should send in the seams zone 
number that they want to use so others can complete their cases for the combination. Tom 
stated that while SRP identified their seams buses, bus numbers, and names, they did not 
indicate which zone they wanted to use for their seams buses yet. The new SRP bus data 
in the buses spreadsheet was shown. Tom stated that he liked the way SRP put in a 
column to indicate if a bus was a seams bus. He pointed out that another column was 
added for the bus number that SRP wanted to use. It was pointed out that the highlighting 
was also useful for quickly finding these buses. Tom suggested that the format used by 
SRP should be used by everyone. Everyone agreed. As an action item, everyone will use 
the SRP spreadsheet format for their seams buses. It was pointed out that zone 150 was 
used for the seams buses and other zones. Tom stated that SRP will have to change this to 
a unique zone. He stated that SRP was waiting for some additional zones from WECC 
which may be why they did not use a unique zone yet for their seams buses. 

This concluded the Areas and Zones in Cases agenda item.



6)  Equivalents Update 

The Equivalents agenda item was covered next. Tom asked Ron if there was any work 
done on the equivalents since the last meeting. Ron stated that he had not had time to do 
anything with the equivalents since the last meeting and had not heard anything from 
Steve yet. 

Tom stated that since Steve had a heavy workload with his case integration, he would like 
to ask if anyone would have time to take over the equivalents investigation using Aspen. 
As an action item, Don Adams stated that he would investigate the equivalents in Aspen. 
Don asked what the work was that he needed to do. It was pointed out to him that this 
information was in the previous minutes. As an action item, Tom Field will send this 
specific information to Don A. 

This concluded the Equivalents Update agenda item. 

7)  SWAT SCWG Task Force for East Nevada Short Circuit study 

The SWAT SCWG Task Force for the East Nevada Short Circuit Study Group (EN 
SCSG) agenda item was covered next. Tom stated that SPPC/NPC had declined to chair 
the task force. Tom Field stated that he would chair the task force if there were no 
objections and nobody else wanted to chair it. Tom asked if anyone wanted to chair the 
task force. There were no offers to chair the task force. Tom asked if anyone would 
object to his chairing the task force. There were no objections. 

Tom stated that he will talk to TEP/Unisource about being a member before the next 
meeting because they could be impacted around the Kingman area. Tom asked Robert S. 
if IID would like to be a member since they could also be affected by the impacts and 
some of the people in Southern California which will need to be a part of ENSCSG will 
also be the people IID is working with on combining a case for their boundary. Robert S. 
stated that he would like to be a member for now and would talk to David B. further 
about it after the meeting. Tom F. stated that SWTC may also want to be a member due 
to possible impacts on some of their assets. 

Tom stated that he had not received any new information since the last SWAT SCWG 
meeting on the ENSCSG. He stated that since the workload of Alex had caused the EN 
SCSG work to slow down for now and the SWAT SCWG could not do much more for 
the ENSCSG until the SWAT SCWG case was completed, this should not be a problem 
for now. Tom stated that anyone in the group that would like to be a member can become 
a member since there is a delay for now. As an action item, Tom Field will send any 
information on the ENSCSG to the SWAT SCWG. Tom stated that any member that 
sends in a request to be on the ENSCSG task force will be put on the task force. 

This concluded the SWAT SCWG Task Force for East Nevada Short Circuit study 
agenda item.



8)  Case Combination 

The Case Combination agenda item was covered next. Tom stated that both Aspen and 
Cape have methods of combining the cases. He stated that Electrocon suggested use of 
their program due to the way the seams buses were being setup. He stated that both the 
Electrocon program and Aspen need to be evaluated to determine if there are any 
problems with the mechanics or if one works much better than the other. 

An email from Electrocon on November 15 was shown in which Electrocon stated that 
“Cape is the perfect tool for doing this” in reference to combining the cases the way they 
are being conditioned. Ron O. stated that the program is already in Cape. Tom F. stated 
that the group shouldn’t put the burden on Ron to combine all of the cases and that if the 
Electrocon stand alone program that was offered for a fee to the group was found to be 
superior to any problems found in Aspen, the group could purchase it and combine their 
own cases with it. As an action item, Ron Onate will evaluate the merging of two cases 
with the Cape program. 

Tom stated that a volunteer is needed to check the Aspen method. He stated that since 
Kevin will be going to the advanced Aspen class which will go in depth in case merging, 
this would be a good opportunity for him to investigate it before the class. As an action 
item, Kevin Salsbury will evaluate the merging of two cases with the Aspen program. 

Tom stated that the same case should be used on Aspen and Cape for the merge 
evaluations. He stated that this should be done using a small case with 3 zones. He stated 
that 2 of the 3 zones should be extracted to a Case 1 and 2 of the 3 zones should be 
extracted to a Case 2. He stated that only 1 of the zones should be common to both Case 
1 and Case 2. He stated that this common zone would be the seams zone. He stated that 
Case 1 and Case 2 should be used for the merging into a single case. Tom stated that Ron 
and Kevin should identify the problems they find in combining these two cases. 

Tom stated that they have a couple of small cases that could be used, but they don’t have 
zones in them. As an action item, Tom Field will put 3 zones in the IID case and send to 
Kevin S. As an action item, Kevin Salsbury will extract a Case 1 and a Case 2 and send 
them to Ron O. for use in evaluation of the Cape merge mechanics. 

Tom stated that during the last update to SWAT, he reported that the case combination 
work would be started at this meeting. He stated that there were action items developed at 
this meeting for working on the mechanics of joining two test cases. Tom asked if 
everyone agreed that the next report to SWAT should state that the case combination 
work had been started. Everyone agreed. 

This concluded the Case Combination agenda item.



9)  Determine Location of Next Meeting 

The last agenda item, Determine Location of Next Meeting, was covered next. Tom 
stated that his workload at WAPA would not allow him to participate in the next meeting 
until the end of March. He stated that the best two days for the next meeting that he could 
attend would be Tuesday, March 27 or Wednesday, March 28. 

Tom stated that before discussing the next meeting date, he wanted to point out that 
another member could run the next meeting in February. He stated that the 3 rd Thursday 
of the month conflicts with the Phoenix IEEE PES meetings. He stated that Steve C. 
requires a Tuesday or Wednesday to participate in the meetings. 

Tom asked the group if they wanted to have the next meeting in February or March. 
Everyone agreed to have the next meeting in March. Tom asked what day in March 
would work best for everyone. Some responded that Tuesdays work best for them. Tom 
asked if everyone would like to have the next meeting on Tuesday, March 27. Everyone 
agreed to have the next meeting on Tuesday, March 27. 

Tom asked if the time of 9:30 am to 4:00 pm should be changed for the next meeting. 
Everyone agreed that the next meeting should be from 9:30 am to 4:00 pm. 

Tom stated that all of the members have hosted a meeting except IID. Tom asked Robert 
S. what the flight schedule into IID was like. Robert stated that there was a flight in the 
morning and a flight around noon. Robert stated that the you could fly into Yuma and 
drive from there to El Centro. Tom stated that the meetings have been about evenly split 
between Phoenix and other locations because 3 of the members are in Phoenix. Don A. 
pointed out that SWRTA hosted a meeting in Casa Grande which is also near Phoenix. 
David G. stated that he would prefer to have all the meetings in Phoenix because it is 
easier for him to get a flight in and out. Tom asked where everyone would like to have 
the next meeting. Everyone agreed that the next meeting should be in Phoenix. Tom 
stated that WAPA hosted 2 meetings in Phoenix, APS hosted the last meeting in Phoenix, 
and suggested that the next meeting be hosted by SRP. Everyone agreed that the next 
meeting should be hosted by SRP. Tom stated that SRP was not at this meeting, so they 
would have to be contacted to determine if they could host the next meeting. As an action 
item, Tom Field will contact Maria R. to see if SRP can host the next meeting. Ron O. 
stated that if SRP cannot host the next meeting, he will look into hosting the next meeting 
at APS. Tom F. stated that if SRP cannot host the next meeting and APS cannot host the 
next meeting, WAPA will host the next meeting. 

As an action item, Tom F. will send out the agenda for the next meeting with the 
directions and information provided by the host of the next meeting. Tom F. asked if 
there were any other items that anyone would like to bring up. There were no other items 
brought up. The meeting was adjourned at approximately 3:45 pm.



SWAT SC Working Group 
January 25, 2007 
9:30 AM to 4:00 PM  Mountain Time 
Location:  Trico Electric Cooperative 

Meeting Room 
8600 W. Tangerine Road 
Marana, AZ 85653 

Meeting called by:  SWAT SC Working Group 

Purpose:  SWAT SC Working Group meeting to review short circuit items of mutual 
interest for the SWAT system. 

 Agenda Topics  

1.  Introductions, Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes, and Update on 
Action Items 
2.  PTI to Aspen Conversion – Tom Field 
3.  Check of Member Cases – Ron Onate and Tom Field 
4.  WestConnect Map Work Proposal 
5.  Areas and Zones in Cases 
6.  Equivalents – Ron Onate and Steve Conrad 
7.  SWAT SCWG Task Force for East Nevada Short Circuit Study 

Group 
8.  Case Combination 
9.  Determine Location of Next Meeting 

Meeting Location Instructions: 

Lunch will be brought in at noon and the meeting will resume at 12:30. 

Call (520) 7442944 if you need to contact the main lobby at Trico. 

Sign in at the front desk and they will direct you to the meeting room. 

Please see attached maps for directions from Tucson and Phoenix. 
Trico is just east of I10 about 1 mile so it is very easy to get to.









SWAT SCWGSWAT SCWG

October 26, 2006 MeetingOctober 26, 2006 Meeting



AgendaAgenda



IntroductionsIntroductions



Approval of October 2006    Approval of October 2006    
Meeting MinutesMeeting Minutes



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Show the September meeting minutes on the website as 

approved.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Investigate the latest change made by Aspen which is 

supposed to take care of the transformer problems in the PTI to Aspen 
conversion.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Rerun the DPV2 case and check to verify that the charging 

was not set to zero originally since the screen shot showed the “set 
charging to zero” as checked for the new aspen transformer option 
comparison of PTI to Aspen.



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Mike Agudo
• Action Item: ask Lane C. of WAPA if he went to the October 16, 

2006 Western Protective Relay Conference  and if he did, he would 
ask him if he would provide a report to the group.

• Person: Maria Ramirez
• Action Item: find out who at SRP attended the Western Protective 

Relay Conference and ask them if they would give a report to the
group on the meeting.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: place a link to the Western Protective Relay 

Conference on the SWAT SCWG website. 



Links for GroupsLinks for Groups



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Compile SWTC reclosing questionnaire responses 

and post them in an encrypted file on the website.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Send Tom S. the SWAT SCWG encryption information 

after the meeting. 

• Person: Tom Spence
• Action Item: Provide reclosing working group information to Tom F. 

to put on website.



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Kevin Salsbury
• Action Item: Contact Alex F. and obtain the date for the next EN-

SCSG meeting.

• Person: Kevin Salsbury
• Action Item: Send the address of the EN-SCSG webpage to Tom 

F. to place on the SWAT SCWG webpage.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: put the EN-SCSG link to the webpage on the SWAT 

SCWG webpage. 



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: contact Alex F. and ask him to chair the EN-

SCSG task force.  

• November 3, 2006 email from Alex



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: talk to TEP about TEP/Unisource being a 

member of the EN SCSG. Tom S. of SWTC did not state 
whether or not SWTC wanted to be a member.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: arrange a teleconference with SCE, SDGE, 

CFE, IID, and SWAT for the Southern California short 
circuit case the week after the SWAT SCWG meeting. 



Background Information sent to Background Information sent to 
Teleconference ParticipantsTeleconference Participants



Teleconference with SDG&E, SCE, Teleconference with SDG&E, SCE, 
CFE, IID, SPPC and WAPA on CFE, IID, SPPC and WAPA on 

November 8, 2006November 8, 2006









22ndnd Teleconference Arranged for Teleconference Arranged for 
November 14 November 14 





November 14, 2006 November 14, 2006 
Teleconference SummaryTeleconference Summary



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Send in the areas and zones they want to use for their 

data.

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Send in the zones they want to use for their mutual 

zone, their equivalent zone, and their seams zone.

• Person: Maria Ramirez
• Action Item: Call Steve C. and ask him to send in the PNM case for 

error checking.



PNM Case Status PNM Case Status –– January 22 January 22 
emailemail



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Send their information to Tom F. to change the 

buses spreadsheet if they are an owner of a seams bus and 
want different information than in the WECC case.

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Review their seams buses that they are the 

owners of in the WECC case and return any split WECC 
buses to Tom F. and indicate which lines are connected to 
them and the bus numbers they want to use for them.

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Start putting area and zone information in their 

case in preparation for the combining of the cases.



Clarification on Areas and Zones Clarification on Areas and Zones 
sent to SRP on December 14sent to SRP on December 14



Clarification on Areas and Zones Clarification on Areas and Zones 
sent to SRP on December 14sent to SRP on December 14



January 22 update from SRP on January 22 update from SRP on 
adding areas and zones to their adding areas and zones to their 

casecase



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Change the buses spreadsheet to include any split bus 

information that members send in.

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Identify their seams buses and send a revised list from 

the spreadsheet with just seams buses and indicate the names and
numbers they want changed in the spreadsheet..

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Change the names and numbers of their seams buses 

to match the spreadsheet names and numbers for the owners of the
seams buses.



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Change the buses spreadsheet to include any 

changes that the members send in. 

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Add unique bus numbers to their buses that have a 

bus number of 0 and send in their case for the second round of error 
checking to be able to determine the number of buses with a 
difference of 100 A or more. 

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Put a branches sheet for all of the buses in the buses 

spreadsheet. 



Updated Buses SpreadsheetUpdated Buses Spreadsheet



Lines SheetLines Sheet



Transformers SheetTransformers Sheet



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: Generate a list of the types of errors to be 

fixed and send to everyone before they send their fixed 
cases back.

• Person: Entire Group
• Action Item: Make a list of the errors not in their data 

and identify whose data the error is in.

• Person: David Gutierrez
• Action Item: look at the COX transformers and remove 

one of them if it is not there.



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: SRP
• Action Item: Fix the problems in the SRP case identified and send the 

fixed case back to Tom F. for a second round of error checking.

• Person: WAPA
• Action Item: Fix the problems in the WAPA case identified and send 

the fixed case back to Tom F. for a second round of error checking. 

• Person: Ron Onate
• Action Item: Fix the problems identified in the APS case and send the 

fixed case back to Tom F. for a second round of error checking. 



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Ron Onate
• Action Item: Fix the bus names and kVs that are 

duplicates in the APS Cape case.

• Person: Ron Onate
• Action Item: look further into why 1 of the switches was 

not added in the APS log file and contact Electrocon if 
the report is incorrect.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: send the correct generator data to TEP.



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Ron Onate
• Action Item: develop a list of what characters are not 

accepted in Cape. 

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: send list of characters not accepted in 

CAPE to the group. 



List of Characters Accepted by List of Characters Accepted by 
CapeCape



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Check the IID case and put it on 

the website.

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Have a teleconference with Aspen 

and Electrocon to try and get them to form an 
agreement to share information needed for data 
conversion between the two programs.



ElectroconElectrocon Email Email –– November 8November 8



Aspen Email Aspen Email –– November 8November 8



ElectroconElectrocon Email Email –– November 15November 15



Update on October Meeting Action Update on October Meeting Action 
ItemsItems

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Rerun the cases after Electrocon fixes the 

DD transformer conversion problem.

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Look into the “secondary voltage difference 

more than 20” problem in the NPC case and determine 
what the message means and what the problem is.

• Person: Ron Onate
• Action Item: Look at the 19 transformers with duplicate 

ckt, 19 neutral buses added, and 19 bus ties added in the 
SRP case to determine if they were the same. 



Update on October Meeting Update on October Meeting 
Action ItemsAction Items

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Look into the cause of the “mutual 

couplings ignored because bus not found” 
warning message in the TEP case.

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Look into the cause of the “end 

buses were not found on bus ties” warning 
message in the TEP case. 



Update on October Meeting Update on October Meeting 
Action ItemsAction Items

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Look at what changed during the conversion process 

for the APS case to give the differences between the pre and post 
cases. 

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Rerun the SRP faults after the meeting and look at the 

differences if they are the same to find out why there were 
differences between Aspen and Cape. 

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: Look at the differences in the Cape and post results for 

the WAPA case to find out what the differences are due to.



Update on October Meeting Update on October Meeting 
Action ItemsAction Items

• Person: Ron Onate and Tom Field
• Action Item: perform a second round of error checking 

on the TEP case and generate the comparison 
spreadsheet. 

• Person: Ron Onate
• Action Item: Discuss a plan for the equivalents checking 

work with Steve after the meeting. Call Steve to setup a 
timeline and teleconference for developing the plan.

• Person: Tom Field
• Action Item: send out the agenda for the next meeting 

with the directions and information provided by Tom S.



Additional Action ItemsAdditional Action Items

• Any other action Items not in draft 
Minutes?



New ItemsNew Items
• Advanced ASPEN OneLiner Training Class– March 

21-22, 2007 in San Francisco



IEEE PSRC Meeting IEEE PSRC Meeting ––
January 8January 8--11, 2007 in Scottsdale, 11, 2007 in Scottsdale, 

AZAZ



SWAT UpdateSWAT Update

• Next SWAT Meeting on January 30, 2007
• Phoenix, AZ



Membership Inquiry Membership Inquiry ––
December 14, 2006December 14, 2006



Alberta Inquiry about StatusAlberta Inquiry about Status



Other New ItemsOther New Items

• Any other new items not on the agenda 
since the last meeting?



PTI to Aspen ConversionsPTI to Aspen Conversions

• No work done since last meeting



Check of Members CasesCheck of Members Cases
• IID case checked

• NPC case had 3rd round of error checking 

• EPE and TEP cases had 2nd round of error 
checking

• PNM is the only case that has not been 
submitted

• SRP, APS, and WAPA cases checked again 
after changes to CAPE



Error Checking WorkError Checking Work

• Tom F. and Ron O. met on November 2, 2006 
for a full day and ran the IID, TEP, and NPC

• Tom F. and Ron O. met on November 15, 2006 
for a full day

• Tom F. and Ron O. met on January 17, 2007 for 
a full day



November 2, 2006 meetingNovember 2, 2006 meeting

• IID, TEP, NPC, WAPA, APS, and SRP 
cases rerun and files generated

• Action items addressed

• Output files analysis for previous problems 
performed on NPC 



November 15, 2006 meeting November 15, 2006 meeting 
• Teleconference held with Aspen and Electrocon for 

future updates to conversion routines

• Output files analysis for previous problems performed on 
TEP

• Previous problem action items investigated

• New problems found

• Decided to wait for further program modifications before 
rerunning all the files



Action Items Resolutions Action Items Resolutions –– DD DD 
transformer in EPE pre and post casestransformer in EPE pre and post cases



Action Items Resolutions Action Items Resolutions ––
Duplicate Duplicate cktckt for lines and for lines and 
transformers in NPC casetransformers in NPC case

• The winding numbers are the actual bus 
numbers to use to look for problems



Action Items resolvedAction Items resolved

• look further into 1 of the switches was not 
added in the APS log file and contact 
Electrocon if the report is incorrect.

• Problem found to be two switches in 
parallel – Cape doesn’t allow and removes 
one



Response from Response from ElectroconElectrocon on bus on bus 
ties on November 1, 2006ties on November 1, 2006



Action Items resolvedAction Items resolved

• Look into the cause of the “mutual 
couplings ignored because bus not found” 
warning message in the TEP case.

• One of the lines was offline causing the 
message



Action Items resolvedAction Items resolved

• Look at the 19 transformers with duplicate 
ckt, 19 neutral buses added, and 19 bus 
ties added in the SRP case to determine if 
they were the same. 

• Found to be just a coincidence in the 
numbers



Action Items resolvedAction Items resolved

• Look into the “secondary voltage 
difference more than 20” problem in the 
NPC case and determine what the 
message means and what the problem is.

• Problem no longer reported in the revised 
NPC case with the revised CAPE program 



Action Items UnresolvedAction Items Unresolved

• Look into the cause of the “end buses 
were not found on bus ties” warning 
message in the TEP case.

• Problem found to be buses with more than 
one switch attached – Cape removes the 
switches



End Buses Not Found Problem End Buses Not Found Problem 

• Problem due to more than 1 switch connected to a bus 

• Cape removes the switches 

• Problem still not resolved

• Cape no longer puts out warning message in the latest version, 
but the problem is still there



Problems found on Problems found on 
November 15November 15



YYD Transformer Problem YYD Transformer Problem –– TEP caseTEP case



YYD Transformer Problem YYD Transformer Problem ––
TEP pre caseTEP pre case



YYD Transformer Problem YYD Transformer Problem ––
TEP post caseTEP post case



YYD Response from YYD Response from ElectroconElectrocon ––
December 4 and January 21 emailsDecember 4 and January 21 emails



Elimination of Switch Problem Elimination of Switch Problem ––
APS pre and post cases APS pre and post cases 



Multiple Bus Tie Response from Multiple Bus Tie Response from 
ElectroconElectrocon –– January 21 emailJanuary 21 email



Response from Response from ElectroconElectrocon after after 
November 15 meeting and on November 15 meeting and on 

January 21January 21



January 17, 2007 meetingJanuary 17, 2007 meeting

• New revisions to software installed

• TEP, NPC, IID, WAPA, SRP, and APS 
cases rerun

• Comparisons to outputs made

• YYD and Bus Tie problems still unresolved



Changes in new softwareChanges in new software
• Improvement in singularity checking – zero sequence 

data now correct in report

• New error message in NPC case

• Number of transformer windings different before and 
after changes to software – EPE had 191, but now the 
number reported is 187 – TEP had 451, but now has 
450  - same case used, but reported numbers are 
different – may be report itself



Comparison SpreadsheetsComparison Spreadsheets

• IID did not have any differences of more 
than 2 A on any comparisons

• TEP had too many buses without a 
number, so only post to cape comparisons 
useful

• SRP and APS cases still have problems



EPE Pre to Post ComparisonEPE Pre to Post Comparison

• 7 buses with 100 A or more difference
• First 2 are same, but Cape renumbered it



EPE Pre to Cape ComparisonEPE Pre to Cape Comparison

• 56 buses 
with 100 A 
or more 
difference



EPE Cape to Post ComparisonEPE Cape to Post Comparison

• 50 buses 
with 100 A 
or more 
difference



NPC Pre to Post ComparisonNPC Pre to Post Comparison

• 18 buses 
with 100 A 
or more 
difference



NPC Pre to Cape ComparisonNPC Pre to Cape Comparison

• 79 buses 
with 100 A 
or more 
difference



NPC Cape to Post ComparisonNPC Cape to Post Comparison

• 36 buses 
with 100 A 
or more 
difference



TEP Cape to Post ComparisonTEP Cape to Post Comparison

• 12 buses 
with 100 A 
or more 
difference



WAPA Case ComparisonsWAPA Case Comparisons
• Pre to Post comparisons reduced from 22 to 16 buses 

with 100 A or more difference

• Pre to Cape comparisons increased from 25 to 38 buses 
with 100 A or more difference

• Cape to Post comparisons reduced from 133 to 22 
buses with 100 A or more difference 

• Previously, the Cape to Post comparison was high and 
investigated – problem appears to be removed



SRP Case ComparisonsSRP Case Comparisons
• Pre to Post comparisons reduced from 12 to 11 buses 

with 100 A or more difference

• Pre to Cape comparisons increased from 134 to 159 
buses with 100 A or more difference

• Cape to Post comparisons increased from 123 to 149 
buses with 100 A or more difference 

• Previously, the Cape to Post and Cape to Pre 
comparison was high and investigated – problem has not 
been removed by changes in program and use of small 
switch reactance



APS Case ComparisonsAPS Case Comparisons
• Pre to Post comparisons remained at 313 buses with 

100 A or more difference

• Pre to Cape comparisons remained at 317 buses with 
100 A or more difference

• Cape to Post comparisons remained at 57 buses with 
100 A or more difference

• Previously, the Pre to Post and Cape to Pre comparison 
was high and investigated – problem has not been 
removed by changes in program and use of small switch 
reactance



Next StepsNext Steps

• New version of Cape requested on January 23

• Known problem with Switch removal to be 
resolved before running again

• Cases to be looked at after rerun and 
recomparison to determine cause of any 
additional problems



WestConnect Map ProposalWestConnect Map Proposal

• No new information yet
• January 18, Las Vegas – last meeting
• February 15, Phoenix – next meeting



Areas and Zones in CasesAreas and Zones in Cases
• Only 1 response on mutuals, equivalents, and seams 

zones

• Only 1 response on seams buses

• Only 1 response on bus number differences from 
WECC

• No responses on split bus information



Areas and ZonesAreas and Zones



SRP Seams bus InformationSRP Seams bus Information



Equivalents Equivalents 

• Any updates?



SWAT SCWG Task Force for East SWAT SCWG Task Force for East 
Nevada Short Circuit Study GroupNevada Short Circuit Study Group

• SPPC/NPC declined to chair task force 
and suggested Tom Field chair it

• Next meeting date not known



Case CombinationCase Combination

• Aspen and CAPE can combine cases

• Electrocon suggested use of their program

• Both methods need to be evaluated



ElectroconElectrocon Email Email ––
November 15, 2006November 15, 2006



Case Combination CheckingCase Combination Checking

• Need a volunteer to check Aspen method

• Same case should be used on Aspen and 
CAPE

• 3 sets of zones in one small case to test



Benchmark Case for TestingBenchmark Case for Testing

• Extract 2 of the 3 zones into case 1

• Extract 2 of the 3 zones in case 2 using one of the 
zones not extracted in case 1

• Combine cases 1 and 2 using the zone that is 
common to both as the seams zone

• Identify problems in the combination



Determine Location of Next Determine Location of Next 
MeetingMeeting

• Workload will not allow WAPA to 
participate in meeting until end of March

• Tuesday, March 27 or 
Wednesday, March 28?



Next Meeting Location and DateNext Meeting Location and Date

• Another member could run meeting in February

• 3rd Thursday conflicts with Phoenix IEEE PES

• Steve C. requires Tuesday or Wednesday  

• Date?
• Time?
• Location?



Website addressWebsite address

• http://www.oatioasis.com/WALC/WALCdocs/page1.htm


	SWATSCWGm11.pdf
	SWAT SCWG
	Agenda
	Introductions
	Approval of October 2006    �Meeting Minutes�
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Links for Groups
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Background Information sent to Teleconference Participants
	Teleconference with SDG&E, SCE, CFE, IID, SPPC and WAPA on November 8, 2006
	2nd Teleconference Arranged for November 14 
	November 14, 2006 Teleconference Summary
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	PNM Case Status – January 22 email
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Clarification on Areas and Zones sent to SRP on December 14
	Clarification on Areas and Zones sent to SRP on December 14
	January 22 update from SRP on adding areas and zones to their case
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Updated Buses Spreadsheet
	Lines Sheet
	Transformers Sheet
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	List of Characters Accepted by Cape
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Electrocon Email – November 8
	Aspen Email – November 8
	Electrocon Email – November 15
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Update on October Meeting Action Items
	Additional Action Items
	New Items
	IEEE PSRC Meeting – �January 8-11, 2007 in Scottsdale, AZ
	SWAT Update
	Membership Inquiry – �December 14, 2006
	Alberta Inquiry about Status
	Other New Items 
	PTI to Aspen Conversions
	Check of Members Cases
	Error Checking Work
	November 2, 2006 meeting
	November 15, 2006 meeting 
	Action Items Resolutions – DD transformer in EPE pre and post cases
	Action Items Resolutions – Duplicate ckt for lines and transformers in NPC case
	Action Items resolved
	Response from Electrocon on bus ties on November 1, 2006
	Action Items resolved
	Action Items resolved
	Action Items resolved
	Action Items Unresolved
	End Buses Not Found Problem 
	Problems found on �November 15
	YYD Transformer Problem – TEP case
	YYD Transformer Problem – �TEP pre case
	YYD Transformer Problem – �TEP post case
	YYD Response from Electrocon – December 4 and January 21 emails
	Elimination of Switch Problem – APS pre and post cases 
	Multiple Bus Tie Response from Electrocon – January 21 email
	Response from Electrocon after November 15 meeting and on January 21
	January 17, 2007 meeting
	Changes in new software
	Comparison Spreadsheets
	EPE Pre to Post Comparison
	EPE Pre to Cape Comparison
	EPE Cape to Post Comparison
	NPC Pre to Post Comparison
	NPC Pre to Cape Comparison
	NPC Cape to Post Comparison
	TEP Cape to Post Comparison
	WAPA Case Comparisons
	SRP Case Comparisons
	APS Case Comparisons
	Next Steps
	WestConnect Map Proposal
	Areas and Zones in Cases
	Areas and Zones
	SRP Seams bus Information
	Equivalents �
	SWAT SCWG Task Force for East Nevada Short Circuit Study Group
	Case Combination
	Electrocon Email – �November 15, 2006
	Case Combination Checking
	Benchmark Case for Testing
	Determine Location of Next Meeting
	Next Meeting Location and Date
	Website address


